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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter 
School (the “School”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as 
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 2 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 16, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 23, 
2022, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 



                  
          

                  

                
                

          
                
          

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 
2022 2021 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash $   1,683,797 $   2,511,787 
Grants and contracts receivable 796,170 283,464 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 80,957 120,355 

Total Current Assets 2,560,924 2,915,606 

Property and equipment, net 273,012 274,852 
Restricted cash 100,232 75,528 

$   2,934,168 $   3,265,986 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $        99,878 $      151,250 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 436,295 399,446 

Total Current Liabilities 536,173 550,696 

Net Assets 
Without donor restrictions 2,286,768 2,431,011 
With donor restrictions 111,227 284,279 

Total Net Assets 2,397,995 2,715,290 

$   2,934,168 $   3,265,986 

See notes to financial statements

 3 



                           
                           
                             

        
                                  

                                 
                

                             
                             
                             

                                   
                                   
                             

                  

                  

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Federal grants 
Federal IDEA and E-rate 
State and city grants 
Contributions and grants 
Interest and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total Revenue and Support 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$   5,666,251 
859,859 
181,046 

22,081 
31,694 

635 
339,893 

7,101,459 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

$                 -
-
-
-

166,841 
-

(339,893) 
(173,052) 

$   

Total 

5,666,251 
859,859 
181,046 

22,081 
198,535 

635 
-

6,928,407 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 
Special education 

Total Program Services 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total Expenses 

3,805,718 
2,551,339 
6,357,057 

661,241 
227,404 

7,245,702 

-
-
-

-
-
-

3,805,718 
2,551,339 
6,357,057 

661,241 
227,404 

7,245,702 

Change in Net Assets (144,243) (173,052) (317,295) 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 2,431,011 284,279 2,715,290 

End of year $   2,286,768 $      111,227 $   2,397,995 

See notes to financial statements
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Federal grants 
Federal IDEA and E-rate 
State and city grants 
Contributions and grants 
Interest and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total Revenue and Support 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$   5,909,898 
310,103 
106,484 

23,726 
9,724 
2,472 

351,721 
6,714,128 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

$                 -
-
-
-

586,000 
-

(351,721) 
234,279 

$   

Total 

5,909,898 
310,103 
106,484 

23,726 
595,724 

2,472 
-

6,948,407 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 
Special education 

Total Program Services 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total Expenses 

3,557,313 
2,268,497 
5,825,810 

536,364 
145,759 

6,507,933 

-
-
-

-
-
-

3,557,313 
2,268,497 
5,825,810 

536,364 
145,759 

6,507,933 

Change in Net Assets 206,195 234,279 440,474 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 2,224,816 50,000 2,274,816 

End of year $   2,431,011 $      284,279 $   2,715,290 

See notes to financial statements
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 
2022 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $   (317,295) $    440,474 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 159,186 170,239 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 17,394 4,093 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Grants and contracts receivable (512,706) (106,242) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 39,398 (63,379) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (51,372) 54,823 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 36,849 (806) 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (628,546) 499,202 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY 
Purchase of property and equipment (174,740) (110,027) 

Net Change in Cash and Restricted Cash (803,286) 389,175 

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 
Beginning of year 2,587,315 2,198,140 

End of year $ 1,784,029 $ 2,587,315 

See notes to financial statements
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit 
educational corporation that was incorporated to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 
of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter 
on December 14, 2010 valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration by the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the “Board of Regents”). The 
Board of Regents approved and issued several renewals to the School’s Charter expiring on 
June 30, 2027. The School was created to offer a world-class education to students and 
families living in Bedford-Stuyvesant, Crown Heights and the surrounding communities in 
Brooklyn, NY. Through its partnership with NYC Outward Bound Schools, the School is part of 
the Expeditionary Learning network of over 160 member schools nationwide. Its mission is to 
prepare students in under-resourced communities to thrive in college and careers by providing 
a public education rooted in active learning experiences and powerful character development. 
During the 2021-2022 academic year, the School provided education to approximately 263 
students in the sixth through eighth grades. 

The School has an agreement with the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) to 
share public school space at no annual cost. The School occupies approximately 14,000 
square feet on one floor of a public school building. The School also shares the gymnasium, 
auditorium and cafeteria with the public school which approximates 6,751 square feet. The 
School is not responsible for rent, utilities, custodial services, and school safety services other 
than those required for days and times the School operates outside of the traditional NYCDOE 
schedule. The School was unable to determine a value for the contributed space and related 
services and did not record any value for use of donated facilities or services. 

The New York City Department of Education provides free lunches directly to some of the 
School’s students. Such costs are not included in these financial statements. The School 
covers the cost of lunches for children not entitled to the free lunches. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Net Asset Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees. 

Net assets with donor restrictions - represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its Charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur. 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the 
statements of financial position to the amounts presented in the statements of cash flows as of 
June 30: 

2022 2021 
Cash $  1,683,797 $  2,511,787 
Restricted cash 100,232 75,528 

$  1,784,029 $  2,587,315 

Property and Equipment 

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $2,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased property and 
equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of maintenance and 
repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government 
funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which 
case it is expensed as incurred. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment (continued) 

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers 4 years 
Equipment 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 
Software 3 years 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. No impairment losses were 
recognized for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue. 

Revenue and Support 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net assets 
with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as net assets 
without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Marketing and Recruitment 

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruitment. 
Marketing and recruitment expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 
$138,638 and $75,915. 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no 
longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to June 30, 
2019. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is September 23, 2022. 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable primarily consist of federal, state and city entitlements and 
grants. The School expects to collect these receivables in full within one year. Management 
has assessed the need for an allowance and has determined that such an allowance is not 
necessary. 

4. Conditional Promise to Give 

On May 7, 2021, the School received one conditional grant in the amount of $1,000,000, 
which contains donor conditions related to a milestone. Since this grant represents a 
conditional promise to give, it will not be recorded as grant revenue until donor conditions 
are met. As of June 30, 2022, revenue of $500,000 was recognized under this grant and the 
remaining balance of this conditional promise to give was $500,000. 

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Computers $     329,651 $     247,570 
Equipment 167,603 167,603 
Furniture and fixtures 401,689 363,877 
Software 7,785 7,785 
Leasehold improvements 986,353 964,468 

1,893,081 1,751,303 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,620,069) (1,476,451) 

$     273,012 $     274,852 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

5. Property and Equipment (continued) 

Assets with a cost basis of $32,962 and accumulated depreciation of $15,568 were disposed of 
during the year ended June 30, 2022. Assets with a cost basis of $73,626 and accumulated 
depreciation of $69,533 were disposed of during the year ended June 30, 2021. Loss on 
disposal of property and equipment was $17,394 and $4,093 for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021. 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Cash $  1,683,797 $  2,511,787 
Grants and contracts receivable 796,170 283,464 

2,479,967 2,795,251 
Less amounts unavailable 

for general expenditures: 
Net assets with donor restrictions (111,227) (284,279) 

$  2,368,740 $  2,510,972 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is invested in highly liquid instruments until it is 
required for operational use. The School will continue to rely on funding received from the New 
York City Department of Education to cover its future operating costs (see Note 9). 

7. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consist of grants restricted for the 
Floyd Bennett Field Capital Campaign. 

Net assets with donor restrictions were released as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2022 2021 
Floyd Bennett Field Capital Campaign $ 339,893 $      301,721 
Pod Leader Program - 50,000 

$      339,893 $      351,721 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

8. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may 
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The School does not believe 
that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution presently exists. As of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, approximately $1,534,000 and $2,333,000 of cash was maintained 
with an institution in excess of FDIC limits. 

9. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School received 
approximately 82% and 85% of its total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 

10. Employment Contract 

The School entered into a co-employment arrangement with TriNet Group, Inc. (“TriNet”), a 
professional employment organization, effective May 1, 2013. Under the co-employment 
arrangement, TriNet assumes certain employment responsibilities, including the payment 
and reporting employees’ wages and payroll taxes. 

11. Employee Benefit Plan 

For the benefit of its employees, the School participates in a multiple employer defined 
contribution 401(k) plan, through its professional employment organization partner, TriNet (see 
Note 10). Under the 401(k) plan, all employees of the School can elect to make semi-monthly 
contributions to a personal retirement account. The School will make matching contributions to 
any employee contributions, dollar for dollar, up to $1,500 per employee per calendar year. For 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, all employees were eligible to participate in the 
401(k) plan and all employees were eligible for the employer match. Employer match for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $50,300 and $39,883. 

12. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion 
that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying 
financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying 
financial statements for such potential claims. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

13. Risks and Uncertainties 

The School’s operations and financial performance may be affected by the COVID-19 outbreak 
which has spread globally and is expected to adversely affect economic conditions throughout 
the world. If the outbreak continues and conditions worsen, the School may experience a 
disruption in operations as well as a decline in revenue activities. Economic uncertainty is 
related to the potential reduction and/or delays in state and local per pupil operating revenue, 
shortfalls and variations in enrollment, and operational and other changes that could increase 
expenses. The outbreak may adversely affect the School’s activities, financial condition, results 
of operations, and cash flows. Management is closely monitoring the impact of COVID-19 and 
believes the School is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, 
management is unable to estimate the financial impact, if any, related to this matter. 

* * * * * 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes 
the federal award activity of Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School (the 
“School”), under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 
the School, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in 
net assets or cash flows of the School. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

3. Indirect Cost Rate 

The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 

    17 



                                         

 
 

 

 

   

 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School (the “School”) (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 23, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 
 
 
 

  
 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 2 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 



                                         

 

 

 

  

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School’s (the “School”) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The School’s major federal programs are identified 
in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our 
report. 

We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the School’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements applicable to the School’s federal programs. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 
 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 2 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for 
that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of 
the report on compliance about the School’s compliance with the requirements of each major 
federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the School’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the School’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 



                                         

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 3 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


           
          
         

            
         

        

                        
  

                             
                                                                                  

                             
                                                                                  

  

         

 
 

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? 

yes 
yes
yes 

X 
   X 
   X 

no 
none reported 
no 

Federal Awards 
Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes
yes  

Unmodified 

 yes    

   X 
 X 

X 

no 
none reported 

no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Federal Assistance Listing Number(s)       Name of Federal Program or Cluster

       84.425D                   Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund II

       84.425U                   Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund ARP 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

During our audit, we noted no material instance of noncompliance and none of the costs tested 
which were reported in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or 
recommended to be disallowed. 

Section IV – Prior Year Findings 

There were no findings in the prior year. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter 
School (the “School”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as 
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 2 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 16, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 23, 
2022, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 



                  
          

                  

                
                

          
                
          

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 
2022 2021 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash $   1,683,797 $   2,511,787 
Grants and contracts receivable 796,170 283,464 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 80,957 120,355 

Total Current Assets 2,560,924 2,915,606 

Property and equipment, net 273,012 274,852 
Restricted cash 100,232 75,528 

$   2,934,168 $   3,265,986 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $        99,878 $      151,250 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 436,295 399,446 

Total Current Liabilities 536,173 550,696 

Net Assets 
Without donor restrictions 2,286,768 2,431,011 
With donor restrictions 111,227 284,279 

Total Net Assets 2,397,995 2,715,290 

$   2,934,168 $   3,265,986 

See notes to financial statements

 3 



                           
                           
                             

        
                                  

                                 
                

                             
                             
                             

                                   
                                   
                             

                  

                  

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Federal grants 
Federal IDEA and E-rate 
State and city grants 
Contributions and grants 
Interest and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total Revenue and Support 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$   5,666,251 
859,859 
181,046 

22,081 
31,694 

635 
339,893 

7,101,459 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

$                 -
-
-
-

166,841 
-

(339,893) 
(173,052) 

$   

Total 

5,666,251 
859,859 
181,046 

22,081 
198,535 

635 
-

6,928,407 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 
Special education 

Total Program Services 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total Expenses 

3,805,718 
2,551,339 
6,357,057 

661,241 
227,404 

7,245,702 

-
-
-

-
-
-

3,805,718 
2,551,339 
6,357,057 

661,241 
227,404 

7,245,702 

Change in Net Assets (144,243) (173,052) (317,295) 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 2,431,011 284,279 2,715,290 

End of year $   2,286,768 $      111,227 $   2,397,995 

See notes to financial statements
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Federal grants 
Federal IDEA and E-rate 
State and city grants 
Contributions and grants 
Interest and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total Revenue and Support 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$   5,909,898 
310,103 
106,484 

23,726 
9,724 
2,472 

351,721 
6,714,128 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

$                 -
-
-
-

586,000 
-

(351,721) 
234,279 

$   

Total 

5,909,898 
310,103 
106,484 

23,726 
595,724 

2,472 
-

6,948,407 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 
Special education 

Total Program Services 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total Expenses 

3,557,313 
2,268,497 
5,825,810 

536,364 
145,759 

6,507,933 

-
-
-

-
-
-

3,557,313 
2,268,497 
5,825,810 

536,364 
145,759 

6,507,933 

Change in Net Assets 206,195 234,279 440,474 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 2,224,816 50,000 2,274,816 

End of year $   2,431,011 $      284,279 $   2,715,290 

See notes to financial statements

 5 



   
  

   
  

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

La
un

ch
 E

xp
ed

iti
on

ar
y 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 C
ha

rt
er

 S
ch

oo
l 

St
at

em
en

t o
f F

un
ct

io
na

l E
xp

en
se

s 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

2 

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

o.
 o

f 
R

eg
ul

ar
 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Po
si

tio
ns

 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
To

ta
l 

an
d 

G
en

er
al

 
Fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
To

ta
l 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
er

vi
ce

 C
os

ts
 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
st

af
f p

er
so

nn
el

 
16

 
$ 

   
  

71
9,

80
5 

$ 
   

  
37

8,
50

1 
$ 

  
1,

09
8,

30
6 

$ 
   

  
32

0,
28

9 
$ 

   
  

14
6,

79
0 

$ 
  

1,
56

5,
38

5 
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l p

er
so

nn
el

 
31

 
1,

25
8,

32
1 

1,
17

3,
49

8 
2,

43
1,

81
9 

-
-

2,
43

1,
81

9 
N

on
-in

st
ru

ct
io

na
l p

er
so

nn
el

 
8 

37
5,

20
7 

14
0,

31
9 

51
5,

52
6 

4,
90

0 
16

,9
38

 
53

7,
36

4 
To

ta
l P

er
so

nn
el

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
os

ts
 

55
 

2,
35

3,
33

3 
1,

69
2,

31
8 

4,
04

5,
65

1 
32

5,
18

9 
16

3,
72

8 
4,

53
4,

56
8 

Fr
in

ge
 b

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 p

ay
ro

ll 
ta

xe
s 

51
3,

01
6 

36
8,

12
7 

88
1,

14
3 

71
,9

08
 

36
,1

49
 

98
9,

20
0 

R
et

ire
m

en
t 

26
,0

87
 

18
,7

19
 

44
,8

06
 

3,
65

6 
1,

83
8 

50
,3

00
 

Au
di

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
-

-
-

36
,2

50
 

-
36

,2
50

 
O

th
er

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 / 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 / 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
33

9,
17

9 
18

7,
88

2 
52

7,
06

1 
13

7,
61

1 
12

,8
29

 
67

7,
50

1 
R

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

6,
30

8 
2,

29
8 

8,
60

6 
-

-
8,

60
6 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
29

,1
61

 
10

,6
24

 
39

,7
85

 
-

-
39

,7
85

 
Su

pp
lie

s 
/ m

at
er

ia
ls

 
18

0,
91

5 
69

,3
23

 
25

0,
23

8 
1,

14
2 

58
5 

25
1,

96
5 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t /
 fu

rn
is

hi
ng

s 
25

,2
81

 
9,

21
0 

34
,4

91
 

-
-

34
,4

91
 

St
af

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
21

,1
34

 
15

,4
44

 
36

,5
78

 
2,

59
0 

1,
32

5 
40

,4
93

 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

/ r
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

98
,5

65
 

38
,6

74
 

13
7,

23
9 

92
6 

47
3 

13
8,

63
8 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

71
,5

43
 

41
,2

26
 

11
2,

76
9 

5,
06

9 
2,

59
5 

12
0,

43
3 

St
ud

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

15
,5

23
 

5,
65

5 
21

,1
78

 
-

-
21

,1
78

 
O

ffi
ce

 e
xp

en
se

 
33

,5
13

 
24

,4
91

 
58

,0
04

 
4,

24
1 

2,
10

2 
64

,3
47

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

/ a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
83

,0
81

 
60

,7
14

 
14

3,
79

5 
10

,1
80

 
5,

21
1 

15
9,

18
6 

Lo
ss

 o
n 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f p

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
9,

07
9 

6,
63

4 
15

,7
13

 
1,

11
2 

56
9 

17
,3

94
 

O
th

er
 

-
-

-
61

,3
67

 
-

61
,3

67
 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s 
$ 

  
3,

80
5,

71
8 

$ 
  2

,5
51

,3
39

 
$ 

  
6,

35
7,

05
7 

$ 
   

  
66

1,
24

1 
$ 

   
  

22
7,

40
4 

$ 
  

7,
24

5,
70

2 

Se
e 

no
te

s 
to

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 6
 



   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
 

La
un

ch
 E

xp
ed

iti
on

ar
y 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 C
ha

rt
er

 S
ch

oo
l 

St
at

em
en

t o
f F

un
ct

io
na

l E
xp

en
se

s 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

1 

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

o.
 o

f 
R

eg
ul

ar
 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Po
si

tio
ns

 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
To

ta
l 

an
d 

G
en

er
al

 
Fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
To

ta
l 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
er

vi
ce

 C
os

ts
 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
st

af
f p

er
so

nn
el

 
10

 
$ 

   
  

40
8,

11
4 

$ 
   

  
26

3,
84

6 
$ 

   
  

67
1,

96
0 

$ 
   

  
24

3,
07

8 
$ 

   
   

 7
5,

96
5 

$ 
   

  
99

1,
00

3 
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l p

er
so

nn
el

 
30

 
1,

25
7,

59
4 

1,
00

4,
16

5 
2,

26
1,

75
9 

-
-

2,
26

1,
75

9 
N

on
-in

st
ru

ct
io

na
l p

er
so

nn
el

 
12

 
43

0,
66

8 
15

5,
86

1 
58

6,
52

9 
6,

42
4 

25
,6

97
 

61
8,

65
0 

To
ta

l P
er

so
nn

el
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

os
ts

 
52

 
2,

09
6,

37
6 

1,
42

3,
87

2 
3,

52
0,

24
8 

24
9,

50
2 

10
1,

66
2 

3,
87

1,
41

2 

Fr
in

ge
 b

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 p

ay
ro

ll 
ta

xe
s 

47
0,

02
4 

31
6,

05
2 

78
6,

07
6 

57
,1

66
 

21
,4

13
 

86
4,

65
5 

R
et

ire
m

en
t 

21
,6

80
 

14
,5

78
 

36
,2

58
 

2,
63

7 
98

8 
39

,8
83

 
Au

di
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

-
-

-
26

,5
00

 
-

26
,5

00
 

O
th

er
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 / 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 / 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

38
2,

30
8 

22
8,

52
6 

61
0,

83
4 

15
7,

57
5 

13
,2

29
 

78
1,

63
8 

R
ep

ai
rs

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
9,

72
0 

3,
51

7 
13

,2
37

 
-

-
13

,2
37

 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

31
,1

91
 

13
,5

52
 

44
,7

43
 

68
9 

26
2 

45
,6

94
 

Su
pp

lie
s 

/ m
at

er
ia

ls
 

15
6,

09
9 

59
,1

18
 

21
5,

21
7 

79
9 

30
4 

21
6,

32
0 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t /
 fu

rn
is

hi
ng

s 
53

,0
40

 
19

,1
96

 
72

,2
36

 
-

-
72

,2
36

 
St

af
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

26
,4

05
 

17
,8

80
 

44
,2

85
 

2,
53

4 
96

5 
47

,7
84

 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

/ r
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

54
,4

11
 

20
,9

68
 

75
,3

79
 

38
8 

14
8 

75
,9

15
 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

63
,7

59
 

33
,3

49
 

97
,1

08
 

3,
12

8 
1,

19
1 

10
1,

42
7 

St
ud

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

39
,1

24
 

14
,1

59
 

53
,2

83
 

-
-

53
,2

83
 

O
ffi

ce
 e

xp
en

se
 

56
,8

45
 

38
,4

95
 

95
,3

40
 

5,
59

7 
2,

07
7 

10
3,

01
4 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
/ a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

94
,0

69
 

63
,7

04
 

15
7,

77
3 

9,
02

9 
3,

43
7 

17
0,

23
9 

Lo
ss

 o
n 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f p

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
2,

26
2 

1,
53

1 
3,

79
3 

21
7 

83
 

4,
09

3 
O

th
er

 
-

-
-

20
,6

03
 

-
20

,6
03

 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s 
$ 

  
3,

55
7,

31
3 

$ 
  2

,2
68

,4
97

 
$ 

  
5,

82
5,

81
0 

$ 
   

  
53

6,
36

4 
$ 

   
  

14
5,

75
9 

$ 
  

6,
50

7,
93

3 

Se
e 

no
te

s 
to

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 7
 



            
                  

          
               
               
                    
           

          

           

      

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 
2022 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $   (317,295) $    440,474 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 159,186 170,239 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 17,394 4,093 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Grants and contracts receivable (512,706) (106,242) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 39,398 (63,379) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (51,372) 54,823 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 36,849 (806) 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (628,546) 499,202 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY 
Purchase of property and equipment (174,740) (110,027) 

Net Change in Cash and Restricted Cash (803,286) 389,175 

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 
Beginning of year 2,587,315 2,198,140 

End of year $ 1,784,029 $ 2,587,315 

See notes to financial statements
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit 
educational corporation that was incorporated to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 
of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter 
on December 14, 2010 valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration by the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the “Board of Regents”). The 
Board of Regents approved and issued several renewals to the School’s Charter expiring on 
June 30, 2027. The School was created to offer a world-class education to students and 
families living in Bedford-Stuyvesant, Crown Heights and the surrounding communities in 
Brooklyn, NY. Through its partnership with NYC Outward Bound Schools, the School is part of 
the Expeditionary Learning network of over 160 member schools nationwide. Its mission is to 
prepare students in under-resourced communities to thrive in college and careers by providing 
a public education rooted in active learning experiences and powerful character development. 
During the 2021-2022 academic year, the School provided education to approximately 263 
students in the sixth through eighth grades. 

The School has an agreement with the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) to 
share public school space at no annual cost. The School occupies approximately 14,000 
square feet on one floor of a public school building. The School also shares the gymnasium, 
auditorium and cafeteria with the public school which approximates 6,751 square feet. The 
School is not responsible for rent, utilities, custodial services, and school safety services other 
than those required for days and times the School operates outside of the traditional NYCDOE 
schedule. The School was unable to determine a value for the contributed space and related 
services and did not record any value for use of donated facilities or services. 

The New York City Department of Education provides free lunches directly to some of the 
School’s students. Such costs are not included in these financial statements. The School 
covers the cost of lunches for children not entitled to the free lunches. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Net Asset Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees. 

Net assets with donor restrictions - represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its Charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur. 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the 
statements of financial position to the amounts presented in the statements of cash flows as of 
June 30: 

2022 2021 
Cash $  1,683,797 $  2,511,787 
Restricted cash 100,232 75,528 

$  1,784,029 $  2,587,315 

Property and Equipment 

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $2,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased property and 
equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of maintenance and 
repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government 
funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which 
case it is expensed as incurred. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment (continued) 

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers 4 years 
Equipment 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 
Software 3 years 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. No impairment losses were 
recognized for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue. 

Revenue and Support 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net assets 
with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as net assets 
without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Marketing and Recruitment 

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruitment. 
Marketing and recruitment expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 
$138,638 and $75,915. 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 

11 



 
 

 

 

  

  

 

              
              
                      
              
        
      

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no 
longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to June 30, 
2019. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is September 23, 2022. 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable primarily consist of federal, state and city entitlements and 
grants. The School expects to collect these receivables in full within one year. Management 
has assessed the need for an allowance and has determined that such an allowance is not 
necessary. 

4. Conditional Promise to Give 

On May 7, 2021, the School received one conditional grant in the amount of $1,000,000, 
which contains donor conditions related to a milestone. Since this grant represents a 
conditional promise to give, it will not be recorded as grant revenue until donor conditions 
are met. As of June 30, 2022, revenue of $500,000 was recognized under this grant and the 
remaining balance of this conditional promise to give was $500,000. 

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Computers $     329,651 $     247,570 
Equipment 167,603 167,603 
Furniture and fixtures 401,689 363,877 
Software 7,785 7,785 
Leasehold improvements 986,353 964,468 

1,893,081 1,751,303 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,620,069) (1,476,451) 

$     273,012 $     274,852 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

5. Property and Equipment (continued) 

Assets with a cost basis of $32,962 and accumulated depreciation of $15,568 were disposed of 
during the year ended June 30, 2022. Assets with a cost basis of $73,626 and accumulated 
depreciation of $69,533 were disposed of during the year ended June 30, 2021. Loss on 
disposal of property and equipment was $17,394 and $4,093 for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021. 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Cash $  1,683,797 $  2,511,787 
Grants and contracts receivable 796,170 283,464 

2,479,967 2,795,251 
Less amounts unavailable 

for general expenditures: 
Net assets with donor restrictions (111,227) (284,279) 

$  2,368,740 $  2,510,972 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is invested in highly liquid instruments until it is 
required for operational use. The School will continue to rely on funding received from the New 
York City Department of Education to cover its future operating costs (see Note 9). 

7. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consist of grants restricted for the 
Floyd Bennett Field Capital Campaign. 

Net assets with donor restrictions were released as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2022 2021 
Floyd Bennett Field Capital Campaign $ 339,893 $      301,721 
Pod Leader Program - 50,000 

$      339,893 $      351,721 

13 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

8. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may 
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The School does not believe 
that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution presently exists. As of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, approximately $1,534,000 and $2,333,000 of cash was maintained 
with an institution in excess of FDIC limits. 

9. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School received 
approximately 82% and 85% of its total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 

10. Employment Contract 

The School entered into a co-employment arrangement with TriNet Group, Inc. (“TriNet”), a 
professional employment organization, effective May 1, 2013. Under the co-employment 
arrangement, TriNet assumes certain employment responsibilities, including the payment 
and reporting employees’ wages and payroll taxes. 

11. Employee Benefit Plan 

For the benefit of its employees, the School participates in a multiple employer defined 
contribution 401(k) plan, through its professional employment organization partner, TriNet (see 
Note 10). Under the 401(k) plan, all employees of the School can elect to make semi-monthly 
contributions to a personal retirement account. The School will make matching contributions to 
any employee contributions, dollar for dollar, up to $1,500 per employee per calendar year. For 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, all employees were eligible to participate in the 
401(k) plan and all employees were eligible for the employer match. Employer match for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $50,300 and $39,883. 

12. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion 
that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying 
financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying 
financial statements for such potential claims. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

13. Risks and Uncertainties 

The School’s operations and financial performance may be affected by the COVID-19 outbreak 
which has spread globally and is expected to adversely affect economic conditions throughout 
the world. If the outbreak continues and conditions worsen, the School may experience a 
disruption in operations as well as a decline in revenue activities. Economic uncertainty is 
related to the potential reduction and/or delays in state and local per pupil operating revenue, 
shortfalls and variations in enrollment, and operational and other changes that could increase 
expenses. The outbreak may adversely affect the School’s activities, financial condition, results 
of operations, and cash flows. Management is closely monitoring the impact of COVID-19 and 
believes the School is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, 
management is unable to estimate the financial impact, if any, related to this matter. 

* * * * * 

15 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes 
the federal award activity of Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School (the 
“School”), under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 
the School, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in 
net assets or cash flows of the School. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

3. Indirect Cost Rate 

The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 

    17 



                                         

 
 

 

 

   

 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School (the “School”) (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 23, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 
 
 
 

  
 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 2 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 



                                         

 

 

 

  

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School’s (the “School”) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The School’s major federal programs are identified 
in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our 
report. 

We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the School’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements applicable to the School’s federal programs. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 
 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 2 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for 
that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of 
the report on compliance about the School’s compliance with the requirements of each major 
federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the School’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the School’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 



                                         

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School
Page 3 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inac ions on the part of any o her individual member firm or firms. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? 

yes 
yes
yes 

X 
   X 
   X 

no 
none reported 
no 

Federal Awards 
Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes
yes  

Unmodified 

 yes    

   X 
 X 

X 

no 
none reported 

no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Federal Assistance Listing Number(s)       Name of Federal Program or Cluster

       84.425D                   Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund II

       84.425U                   Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund ARP 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

During our audit, we noted no material instance of noncompliance and none of the costs tested 
which were reported in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or 
recommended to be disallowed. 

Section IV – Prior Year Findings 

There were no findings in the prior year. 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Independent Auditors’ Communication of 
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in the Audit 

June 30, 2022 



 
  

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Launch Expeditionary Learning 
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified. 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and others charged 
with governance, the State Education Department of the State University of New York, and others 
within the School, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Harrison, New York 
September 23, 2022 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


















































































































Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

August 2021 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Tuesday August 10, 2021 at 9:00 AM 

Topic: Launch August 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 
Time: Aug 10, 2021 09:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/92177590871 

Meeting ID: 921 7759 0871 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,92177590871# US (Chicago) 
+16465588656,,92177590871# US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

Meeting ID: 921 7759 0871 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/acqcTwUG8X 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Dukes (remote), 
M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lemerond (remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
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R. van de Sande, S. Tarver 

Guests Present 
A. Rubin (remote), Amanda Leake (remote), B. Robinson (remote), C. Schlafer (remote), 
E. Kussell (remote), G. Roehm (remote), R. Tang (remote), snikiema@launchschool.org 
(remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Tuesday Aug 10, 2021 at 9:00 AM. 

II. ACTION ITEM: Approve Charter Revision Requests 

A. Approve Non-Material Revision to Local Assessments 

J. Harber made a motion to approve non-material revision to local assessments. 
N. Lirette seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Approve Non-Material Revision to District of Location 

J. Harber made a motion to approve non-material revision to District of Location. 
A. Rappaport seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

C. Approve Material Revision to Grades and Students Served 

J. Harber made a motion to approve material revision to Grades and Students 
Served. 
A. Rappaport seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. ACTION ITEM: Approve Student Discipline Policy and Code of Conduct 

A. Approve Student Discipline Policy and Code of Conduct 
J. Harber made a motion to Approve Student Discipline Policy and Code of 
Conduct. 
R. Stopol seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. ACTION ITEM: Charter Renewal Application 

A. Approve Charter Renewal Application 

J. Harber made a motion to Approve Charter Renewal Application. 
N. Lirette seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

V. Information Items 

A. 
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Information Items 

The Executive Director reviewed the next steps in the renewal process including 
the application submission, preparation for the renewal site visit, preparation for 
the lobbying campaign, and the following board meeting date. The ED answered 
brief questions from the board. 

VI. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:40 AM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
G. Roehm 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

September 2021 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Tuesday September 21, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: September 2021 Board Meeting 
Time: Sep 21, 2021 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/89855532867 

Meeting ID: 898 5553 2867 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,89855532867# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,89855532867# US (Chicago) 

Dial by your location 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 

Meeting ID: 898 5553 2867 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kugydY2rJ 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Dukes (remote), 
M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol (remote), R. van de Sande 
(remote), S. Tarver (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
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N. Lemerond 

Guests Present 
A. Rubin (remote), Amanda Leake (remote), B. Robinson (remote), C. Schlafer (remote), 
E. Kussell (remote), G. Roehm (remote), R. Tang (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Tuesday Sep 21, 2021 at 6:30 PM. 

II. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from August 2021 Board Meeting 
on 08-10-21. 
R. Stopol seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from June 2021 Board Meeting 
on 06-23-21. 
A. Rappaport seconded the motion. 

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. ACTION ITEM: Approve 2021-2022 District Safety Plan 

A. Approve District Safety Plan 

The Director of Finance presented the 2021-2022 District Safety Plan for board 
approval. 
J. Harber made a motion to approve the 2021-2022 District Safety Plan. 
R. Stopol seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. Program Update 

A. Program Update 

The Head of School updated the board on the start of school for students and staff 
as it relates to Launch's workplan. The HOS answered brief questions from the 
board. 

V. Board Self-Evaluation 

A. Summarizing the Board Self-Evaluation 
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The ED provided a summary of the board self-evaluation and discussed next 
steps. The ED answered brief questions from the board. 

VI. Charter Renewal Site Visit 

A. Site Visit Preparation 

The ED provided an overview of the upcoming renewal site visit and the board's 
specific responsibilities during the visit. Darryl Hazelwood then provided a brief 
overview of the ED evaluation process before the board engaged in interactive 
discussion and activities to prepare for the visit. The ED answered questions from 
the board. 

VII. Executive Session 

A. Executive Session - Vaccine Policy 

The ED, HOS, DOF, and the board moved into executive session to discuss the 
application of Launch's vaccine policy. 

VIII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:40 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
G. Roehm 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

October 2021 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday October 27, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: October 2021 Board Meeting 
Time: Oct 27, 2021 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/87096674620 
Meeting ID: 870 9667 4620 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,87096674620# US (New York) 
+13017158592,,87096674620# US (Washington DC) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

Meeting ID: 870 9667 4620 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kAZM4rjqD 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Ward-Mitchell 
(remote), N. Lemerond (remote), R. van de Sande (remote), S. Tarver (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
M. Dukes, N. Lirette, R. Stopol 

Guests Present 
A. Rubin (remote), B. Robinson (remote), C. Schlafer (remote), E. Kussell (remote), G. 
Roehm (remote), R. Tang (remote), Shamikah Kenlock (remote) 
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I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday Oct 27, 2021 at 6:30 PM. 

II. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from September 2021 Board 
Meeting on 09-21-21. 
A. Rappaport seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. ACTION ITEM: Approve FY21 Audit 

A. Approve FY21 Audit 
The Director of Finance presented the FY21 Audited Financial Statements and 
Auditor's Letter to Management, which included recommendations for a cyber 
security assessment and increased escrow account balance, for approval by the 
Board. The DoF answered brief questions from the board. 
J. Harber made a motion to approve the FY21 Audit. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. Program Update 

A. NWEA MAP Presentation 

The Head of School updated the board on the current state of the Launch 
program, including MAP Growth assessment data and proficiency goals for the 
remainder of the school year. The HoS and Executive Director answered 
questions from the board. 

V. Board Self-Evaluation 

A. Summarizing and Determining Next Steps from the Board Self-Evaluation 

The ED shared a more detailed review of the board self-evaluation results before 
the board split into small groups to discuss next steps. 

VI. Fundraising Committee Update 

A. Fundraising Committee Update 

The ED and Committee Chair updated the board on the FBF capital campaign 
progress and next steps. 

VII. Information Items 

A. 
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Information Items 

The ED presented to the board an update on facility needs at the school building. 

VIII. Executive Session 

A. Executive Session - ED Evaluation 

The board moved to executive session to discuss and finalize the SY20-21 ED 
Evaluation. 

IX. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
D. Hazelwood 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

November 2021 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday November 17, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: November 2021 Launch Board of Trustees Meeting 
Time: Nov 17, 2021 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/85615564551 
Meeting ID: 856 1556 4551 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,85615564551# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,85615564551# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 

Meeting ID: 856 1556 4551 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kcpoQcmvwi 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Dukes (remote), 
M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lemerond (remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol 
(remote), R. van de Sande (remote), S. Tarver (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
None 

Guests Present 
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A. Rubin (remote), Amanda Leake (remote), B. Robinson (remote), C. Schlafer (remote), 
E. Kussell (remote), G. Roehm (remote), R. Tang (remote), Shamikah Kenlock (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday Nov 17, 2021 at 6:30 PM. 

II. Executive Session 

A. Executive Session - ED Evaluation 

The board moved to executive session to discuss and finalize the SY20-21 ED 
Evaluation. 

III. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from the October 2021 Board 
Meeting on 10-27-21. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. ACTION ITEM: Q1 Finance Update and Approve Budget Amendment #1 

A. Q1 Finance Update and Approve Budget Amendment #1 

The Director of Finance and the Finance Committee presented the Q1 financial 
report and proposed budget amendment #1 for board approval. The DoF and ED 
answered brief questions from the board. 
J. Harber made a motion to approve Budget Amendment #1. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

V. Communications Update 

A. Communications Update 

The Director of External Affairs presented to the board on Launch's 
communications 
practices and led the board in an activity to engage with Launch's new 
communications content to provide feedback. The DEA answered brief questions 
from the board. 

VI. ACTION ITEM: Approve Vice-Chair Appointment 

A. Approve Vice-Chair Appointment 
J. Harber made a motion to appoint Marcia Ward-Mitchell as Vice-Chair of the 
board. 
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R. Stopol seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VII. ACTION ITEM: Approve Committee Assignments 

A. Approve Committee Assignments 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the proposed board committee assignments. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VIII. Next Steps - Board Self-Evaluation 

A. Next Steps for Launch Governance Practices 

The ED presented next steps based on the board's self-evaluation and initial 
discussion of the data at the last meeting. 

IX. Approve Executive Compensation 

A. Approve Executive Compensation 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the recommendation from the Personnel 
Committee on executive compensation. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

X. Information Items 

A. Information Items 

The ED and Vice-Chair updated the board on the recent School Visit. The ED then 
provided updates on the Fundraising Committee, FBF Committee, Board Pledge 
Forms, and Student-Led Conferences. 

XI. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
G. Roehm 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

January 2022 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday January 19, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: January 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 
Time: Jan 19, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/86710299374 
Meeting ID: 867 1029 9374 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,86710299374# US (New York) 
+13017158592,,86710299374# US (Washington DC) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

Meeting ID: 867 1029 9374 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kxsG9FLsM 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Dukes (remote), 
M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lemerond (remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol 
(remote), R. van de Sande (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
S. Tarver 

Guests Present 
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A. Rubin (remote), Amanda Leake (remote), B. Robinson (remote), C. Schlafer (remote), 
Casey Noel (remote), E. Kussell (remote), G. Roehm (remote), R. Tang (remote), 
Shamikah Kenlock (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday Jan 19, 2022 at 6:30 PM. 

II. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

M. Ward-Mitchell made a motion to approve the minutes from November 2021 
Board Meeting on 11-17-21. 
R. Stopol seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. Middle School Update 

A. Program Update 

The Head of School provided a brief update on the middle school, including 
COVID updates since returning from winter break and academic updates. 

IV. ACTION ITEM: Approve Board Candidate 

A. Approve Board Candidate 

The Executive Director introduced board candidate Casey Noel. Casey Noel 
spoke about his background and answered brief questions from the board and 
leadership team. 
J. Harber made a motion to approve Casey Noel as board member. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

V. Q2 Finance Update 

A. Q2 Finance Update 

The Director of Finance presented the Q2 Financial Report. The DoF then 
provided a maternity leave update to the board. The HoS answered a brief 
question from the board. 

VI. Compensation Analysis and New Policy Development 

A. Compensation Analysis and New Policy Development 
The ED provided updates on Launch's compensation analysis and new policy 
development. The ED answered brief questions from the board. 
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VII. Fundraising Committee Update 

A. Fundraising Committee Update 

The Chair of the Fundraising Committee updated the board on capital campaign 
progress, including a fundraising overview, potential prospects, and developer 
options. The Chair of the Fundraising Committee and Executive Director answered 
questions from the board. 

VIII. Information Items 

A. Information Items 

The ED updated the board on Launch's charter renewal and committee updates. 
The ED answered brief questions from the board. The Director of External 
Affairs provided updates to the board on enrollment and the FBF partnership 
process. The DEA answered brief questions from the board. 

IX. Executive Session 

A. Executive Session - Employee Matters 

The board moved into executive session to discuss personnel updates. 

X. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
D. Hazelwood 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

February 2022 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday February 16, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: Launch Board of Trustees Meeting - February 2022 
Time: Feb 16, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/89255971381 
Meeting ID: 892 5597 1381 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,89255971381# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,89255971381# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

Meeting ID: 892 5597 1381 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kxRXwtxwW 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Dukes (remote), 
M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lemerond (remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
R. van de Sande, S. Tarver 

Guests Present 
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A. Rubin (remote), Amanda Leake (remote), B. Robinson (remote), E. Kussell (remote), 
G. Roehm (remote), Katherine Lewandowski (remote), R. Tang (remote), Shamikah 
Kenlock (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday Feb 16, 2022 at 6:30 PM. 

II. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from January 2022 Board 
Meeting on 01-19-22. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. ACTION ITEM: Approve Board Candidate 

A. Approve Board Candidate 

The Executive Director introduced board candidate Katherine Lewandowski. 
Katherine Lewandowski spoke about her background and answered brief 
questions from the board. 
J. Harber made a motion to approve Katherine Lewandowski as board member. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. Enrollment Update 

A. Enrollment Update 

Launch's Director of External Affairs updated the board on enrollment progress for 
next school year, including current applicants, marketing updates, and data 
practices. The DEA answered brief questions from the board. 

V. Celebration 

A. Celebrate our Renewal and Expansion 

The board celebrated achieving a full-term renewal and expansion. 

VI. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
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J. Harber 

Powered by BoardOnTrack 3 of 3 



Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

April Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday April 6, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: April 2022 Launch Board of Trustees Meeting 
Time: Apr 6, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/86045832403 
Meeting ID: 860 4583 2403 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,86045832403# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,86045832403# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

Meeting ID: 860 4583 2403 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kdubJJ1uOK 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), J. Harber (remote), M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), R. Stopol 
(remote), R. van de Sande (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
D. Hazelwood, M. Dukes, N. Lemerond, N. Lirette, S. Tarver 

Guests Present 
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A. Rubin (remote), B. Robinson (remote), Casey Noel (remote), E. Kussell (remote), G. 
Roehm (remote), Katherine Lewandowski (remote), R. Tang (remote), Tiayana Logan 
(remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday Apr 6, 2022 at 6:35 PM. 

II. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from February 2022 Board 
Meeting on 02-16-22. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. EL Education Credential 

A. EL Education Credentialing Site Visit 
The Executive Director and Head of School presented to the board on the EL 
Education credentialing site visit on 4/4 and 4/5. 

IV. FBF Presentation 

A. FBF Presentation on Design Schedule and Budget 
Representatives from the design firm, ARO, and the Owner's Rep. firm, About the 
Work, presented a design overview, schedule overview, and budget overview for 
the Floyd Bennett Field project. 

V. Launch FBF Fundraising and Kickoff Event 

A. Fundraising Update 

The ED and Board Chair updated the board on the capital campaign progress, 
including looking at current capital raised, funding needs following years, and 
potential prospects. The ED and Board Chair answered questions from the board. 

B. Launch FBF Fundraising and Kickoff Event 
Rebecca van de Sande and the Director of External Affairs introduced Karen 
Auster from the Auster Agency. Karen provided a brief background of her work 
and presented to the board on Launch's upcoming FBF Fundraising and Kickoff 
event on May 23rd. The DEA and Karen answered questions from the board. 

VI. Closing Items 

A. 
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Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
G. Roehm 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

May 2022 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday May 4, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: May 2022 Launch Board of Trustees Meeting 
Time: May 4, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/82914033311 
Meeting ID: 829 1403 3311 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,82914033311# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,82914033311# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

Meeting ID: 829 1403 3311 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/keZ5VuZqr 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), C. Noel (remote), J. Harber (remote), K. Lewandowski (remote), 
M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol (remote), R. van de Sande 
(remote) 

Trustees Absent 
D. Hazelwood, M. Dukes, N. Lemerond, S. Tarver 

Guests Present 
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A. Leake (remote), A. Rubin (remote), B. Robinson (remote), E. Kussell (remote), G. 
Roehm (remote), R. Tang (remote), S. Kenlock (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday May 4, 2022 at 6:30 PM. 

II. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from April Board Meeting on 04-
06-22. 
A. Rappaport seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

III. Program Update and NYS Testing 

A. Program Update and NYS Testing 

The Head of School provided a program update including the recently completed 
NYS Math and ELA tests, the upcoming NYS Science test, and the final MAP 
Growth assessment. The HOS answered questions from the board. The Director 
of Instructional Coaching for Equity and Impact and the Assistant Principal of 
Student Achievement answered brief questions from the board. 

IV. Q3 Finance Update 

A. Q3 Finance Update 

The Finance Manager presented to the board on the Q3 finances, a second 
budget amendment, and the new compensation policy. The FM and ED answered 
brief questions from the board. 

V. ACTION ITEM: Budget Amendment #2 

A. Budget Amendment #2 

J. Harber made a motion to approve Budget Amendment #2. 
N. Lirette seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VI. ACTION ITEM: Compensation Policy 

A. Compensation Policy 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the new compensation policy. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 
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VII. Launch FBF Fundraising and Kickoff Event 

A. Fundraising Update and Developer Option 

The Executive Director and the Board Chair updated the board on capital 
campaign progress and on conversations with a potential developer partner. 

B. Launch FBF Fundraising and Kickoff Event 
The Director of External Affairs updated the board on the May 23rd Floyd Bennett 
Field fundraising event and next steps. 

VIII. Discussion of Merger 

A. Discussion of Merger 
The Executive Director presented to the board on potential options for merger and 
the board discussed the potential options for merger. 

IX. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
G. Roehm 
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Launch Expeditionary Learning Charter School 

Minutes 

June 2022 Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Wednesday June 22, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Topic: June 2022 Launch Board of Trustees 
Time: Jun 22, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/j/83138855449 
Meeting ID: 831 3885 5449 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,83138855449# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,83138855449# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

Meeting ID: 831 3885 5449 
Find your local number: https://launchschool-org.zoom.us/u/kd20w7gRc6 

Trustees Present 
A. Rappaport (remote), C. Noel (remote), D. Hazelwood (remote), J. Harber (remote), K. 
Lewandowski (remote), M. Dukes (remote), M. Ward-Mitchell (remote), N. Lemerond 
(remote), N. Lirette (remote), R. Stopol (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
R. van de Sande, S. Tarver 

Guests Present 
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A. Leake (remote), C. Schlafer (remote), E. Kussell (remote), G. Roehm (remote), R. 
Tang (remote), S. Kenlock (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
G. Roehm called a meeting of the board of trustees of Launch Expeditionary 
Learning Charter School to order on Wednesday Jun 22, 2022 at 6:30 PM. 

II. A Special Thank You 

A. A Special Thank You 

The Executive Director and Board formally thanked the departing Head of School, 
Efrat Kussell. 

III. Approve Minutes 

A. Approve Minutes 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the minutes from May 2022 Board Meeting 
on 05-04-22. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IV. ACTION ITEM: Budget Amendment #3 

A. Budget Amendment #3 

J. Harber made a motion to approve Budget Amendment #3. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The Finance Manager presented Budget Amendment #3 and answered brief 
questions from the board. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

V. ACTION ITEM: FY23 Budget 

A. FY23 Budget 
J. Harber made a motion to approve the FY23 Budget. 
A. Rappaport seconded the motion. 
The Finance Manager presented the FY23 Budget and answered brief questions 
from the board. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VI. ACTION ITEM: Board Members Terms and Officers 

A. Board Member Terms 

J. Harber made a motion to renew board terms for Nic Lirette and Rebecca van de 
Sande. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
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The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Board Officers 

J. Harber made a motion to approve Jonathan Harber as Chair, Marcia Ward -
Mitchell as Vice Chair, Darryl Hazelwood as Secretary, and Nicole Lemerond as 
Treasurer. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 
J. Harber made a motion to the proposed board committees and memberships. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The Executive Director presented the proposed board committees and 
memberships. The ED answered brief questions from the board. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VII. ACTION ITEM: Board Calendar 

A. Board Meeting Calendar - 2022-2023 

J. Harber made a motion to approve the SY2022-2023 Board Calendar. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

VIII. ACTION ITEM: Authorized Signer 

A. Authorized Signer 
J. Harber made a motion to remove the departing Head of School, Efrat Kussell, 
as an authorized signer and add Shamikah Kenlock as an authorized signer. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

IX. ACTION ITEM: Credit Card Holder 

A. Credit Card Holder 
J. Harber made a motion to remove the departing Head of School, Efrat Kussell, 
as a credit card holder and add Amanda Leake as a credit card holder. 
M. Ward-Mitchell seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

X. Program Update: EL Credentialing and Work Plan 

A. EL Credentialing and Work Plan 

The Head of School presented updates on the Pilot EL Credentialing Process and 
decision-making timeline. The Assistant Principal of Student Achievement and 
Director of Instructional Coaching for Equity and Impact presented the 2022-2023 
Annual Work Plan and next steps. The HOS answered brief questions from the 
board. 

XI. Growth Initiatives 

A. FBF 
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The Executive Director provided an update to the board on Floyd Bennett Field, 
including funding conversations, RFP drafting, a schedule overview, and next 
steps. The ED answered questions from the board. 

B. La Cima 

The Executive Director provided an update to the board on a potential merger with 
La Cima Charter School. The ED answered questions from the board. 

XII. Information Items 

A. Information Items 

The Executive Director updated the board on the summer schedule, the school 
calendar, and board engagement events. 

XIII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:16 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
G. Roehm 
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